
 

1 
 

 

City of Rainier 

City Council Meeting 

August 4, 2025 

6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 

Mayor Jerry Cole called the council meeting to order at 6 p.m.  

 

Council Present: Connie Budge, Scott Cooper, Jeremy Howell, Mike Kreger, Paul Langner 

and Denise Watson 

 

Council Absent: Robert duPlessis 

 

City Attorney Present: No 

 

City Staff Present: Gregg Griffith, Police Chief; W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator; 

Russ Reigel, Public Works Director 

 

Flag Salute 

 

Additions/Deletions from the Agenda: Councilor Connie Budge suggested that the 

community room discussion be tabled to the September meeting. Mayor Jerry Cole suggested 

that the first reading of Ordinance 1102 be tabled to the September meeting. Council President 

Mike Kreger moved to table the first reading of Ordinance 1102 to the September meeting. 

That motion was seconded by Councilor Scott Cooper. Councilors Budge, Cooper, Jeremy 

Howell, Kreger, Paul Langner and Denise Watson all voted in favor. None were opposed.  

 

Mayor’s Address: Mayor Jerry Cole said he recently visited Washington D.C. and met with 

members of Oregon’s federal delegation. He then presented Rainier Day plaques to the city’s 

individual departments.  

 

Visitor Comments: Margaret Cemulini asked about the status of the City’s agreement with 

the Department of Environmental Quality and the U.S. Gypsum lawsuit settlement.  

 

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda 

Consider Approval of the June 30, 2025 Regular Council Meeting Minutes—Kreger 

moved to approve the consent agenda. That motion was seconded by Cooper. Councilors 

Budge, Cooper, Howell, Kreger, Langner and Watson all voted in favor. None were 

opposed.  

 

New Business  

a. First Reading of Ordinance 1102—Prohibiting Outdoor Burning; Providing for      

    Exemptions; Establishing Penalties—this matter was tabled to the September meeting. 

b. Resolution 25-08-01—Setting Sewer Rates for Rightline, Inc., a Business Located  

Outside the City Limits of Rainier—Budge moved to approve the resolution. That 

motion was seconded by Kreger. Councilors Budge, Cooper, Howell, Kreger, Langner 

and Watson all voted in favor. None were opposed. 



 

2 
 

c. Resolution 25-08-02—Setting U.S. Gypsum Water Rates—Kreger moved to approve 

the resolution. That motion was seconded by Langner. Councilors Budge, Cooper, 

Howell, Kreger, Langner and Watson all voted in favor. None were opposed. 

d. Resolution 25-08-03—Setting U.S. Gypsum Sewer Rates—Budge moved to approve 

the resolution. That motion was seconded by Kreger. Councilors Budge, Cooper, Howell, 

Kreger, Langner and Watson all voted in favor. None were opposed. 

Unfinished Business 

a. Community Room Discussion—City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen said he received 

an inquiry about renting the community room. The City should have a policy in place 

before renting the room out to anyone. The senior center has a policy, and he included that 

in the meeting packet. Cole said there should be a fee charged for any for-profit entity. The 

fee can be waived for an event that’s for the community good. Budge asked about liability 

issues. Jorgensen said he can check with the City’s insurance agent. Cooper suggested 

having a work session to evaluate which room to use for the council chambers. The upstairs 

area would probably be better for technology. Jorgensen said it would be easier for 

administrative staff to monitor the community room if it’s in the current council chambers. 

The closest city employee to the upstairs room is the librarian, who is a contract employee, 

and monitoring a community room is not in his contract, duties or responsibilities. Council 

agreed by consensus to hold a separate work session on the matter at a future date.  

b. Wastewater Plant MAO—Jorgensen said he and Reigel requested an additional 

amendment to the City’s agreement with the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). 

That agency sent over a draft revision. Reigel said it pushes some of the deadlines for 

wastewater plant improvements out for two years to allow for collection system repairs and 

flow monitoring to verify the results. Repairs are being done on 1,000 feet of sewer line on 

4th Street and a camera is being run on another line. Council agreed by consensus to 

authorize staff to pursue the amended MAO with DEQ staff.  

Reports  

Reigel said that Nick North has signed up to take a utility locate class. A fire hydrant has 

been installed on Hickory Street and a water tap was installed on East E Street. Jorgensen 

said he’s been promoting the new bus line to Longview, reaching out to property owners 

in the Lindberg area and obtaining the proper equipment to upgrade the council meeting 

broadcasts. Howell and Budge both thanked the public works department for the fire 

hydrant in their neighborhood.  

City Calendar/Announcements—Cooper said the senior center’s live auction is scheduled for 

October 11. Cole said the Rainier Oregon Historical Museum’s grand opening is scheduled for 

August 9.  

 

 

 

Cole adjourned the meeting at 7:04 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 

Mayor Jerry Cole                         W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

 

 

 





























































 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1102 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER PROHIBITING OUTDOOR BURNING; 

PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS; ESTABLISHING PENALTIES 

 
WHEREAS, smoke from outdoor burning in populated areas can present a serious health hazard 

to individuals with respiratory ailments, including children, elderly people, individuals with 

cardiovascular disease and individuals with impaired respiratory function, including asthmatics 

and those with obstructive airway disease; and 

 

WHEREAS, smoke from outdoor burning is a common cause of nuisance complaints between 

neighbors and is often a public nuisance impacting not only residents but the traveling public; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, outdoor burning is one of the most frequently nuisance-related complaints placing 

demands on the limited personnel resources of the Columbia River Fire & District; and  

 

WHEREAS, smoke pollution is an historical and traditional nuisance, especially considering the 

proven adverse health impacts of smoke on human beings; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier finds that it is in the interest of the public health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Rainier to strictly regulate outdoor burning; 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF RAINIER ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Prohibitions 

 

a. Except as provided in Section 2 below, no person shall kindle, start, maintain or allow to 

be maintained, an “open outdoor fire.” For purposes of this ordinance, an “open outdoor 

fire” shall include an open outdoor fire within the ordinary definition and understanding 

of said words, and shall include but not be limited to, the outdoor burning of grass, hay, 

straw, or similar material, as well as commercially available fuel, wood, tree limbs, 

branches, leaves, trimmings or any other woody debris, trash, rubbish or garbage, 

regardless of whether the fire is in the open or contained in a fire ring, burn barrel, 

outdoor fireplace, trash burner, incinerator, barbecue pit, fire pit or other similar burning 

container. 

b. No person shall kindle, start, maintain or allow to be maintained, a garbage fire or 

rubbish fire. A garbage fire or rubbish fire is an open outdoor fire in which the materials 

burned are ordinarily found in household garbage and trash, including but not limited to 

food packaging, cardboard and plastic food containers, as well as putrescible and 

nonputrescible materials. 

 

Section 2. Exemptions 

 

The following activities are specifically exempted from the prohibition in Section 3 above: 

 



 
a. Cooking Fire. Outdoor fire used for pleasure, religious, ceremonial, cooking or similar 

purposes with the fire contained in a fireplace, barbecue grill, barbecue pit or other 

similar enclosure specifically designed for outdoor recreation or cooking. 

Notwithstanding this exception, no outdoor fire is permitted in any type of burn barrel. 

b. Recreation Fire. A fire defined in Section 219 of the Oregon Uniform Fire Code, to wit: 

Recreation Fire is the burning of materials other than rubbish where the fuel being burned 

is not contained in an incinerator, outdoor fireplace, barbecue grill or barbecue pit (or 

other enclosure) and with a total fuel area of three feet or less in diameter and two feet or 

less in height for pleasure, religious, ceremonial cooking or similar purposes.  

c. Biannual Burn Period. An “open outdoor fire” may be allowed by special permit during 

the following special burn periods: 

1. A period beginning the first Saturday in April and ending the third Sunday in 

April 

2. A period beginning the first Saturday in November and ending the third Sunday in 

November. 

3. Such other periods as established by Resolution of the City Council. 

 

Special permits shall be issued by the Columbia River Fire and Rescue District Fire 

Marshal. A permit may be issued only for the approved burn periods and shall contain 

such conditions and restrictions deemed necessary by the Fire Marshal to protect public 

health and safety, including but not limited to compliance with the Columbia County Fire 

Defense Board Rules for Open Burning. The holder of such special permit shall be 

allowed to build an open outdoor fire under the conditions of the permit only. Any 

deviation from the provisions of the permit shall be a violation of this Ordinance. 

d. Training. Fires set and maintained for fire fighting training or training fire protection 

personnel provided all safety precautions required by the Fire Marshal are met.  

e. Emergency Fire. When an emergency is declared by motion of the City Council, the 

Mayor may suspend the open burning ban and permit case by case burning subject only 

to the written or verbal approval of the Fire Marshal, and in accordance with such 

conditions and restrictions deemed necessary by the Fire Marshal to protect public health 

and safety.  

 

Any open outdoor fire authorized in this Section shall only be used to burn commercially 

available fuel, wood, tree limbs, branches, leaves, trimmings or any other woody debris.  

 

Section 3. Penalty  

a. A violation of Section 1, Paragraph (a) of this Ordinance shall be considered a “B” 

Violation punishable by a fine of up to $300. 

b. A violation of Section 1, Paragraph (b) of this Ordinance or a second conviction under 

Section 1, Paragraph (a) of this Ordinance within 18 months shall be considered an “A” 

Violation punishable by a fine of up to $600.  

c. A violation of the limits on exemptions set forth in Section 2 of this Ordinance or of any 

special permit condition granted pursuant to this Ordinance shall be considered a “B” 

Violation punishable by a fine of up to $300. A second conviction within 18 months for 



 
violation of the limitations set forth in Section 2 or of any special permit condition shall 

be a “A” Violation punishable by a fine of up to $600.  

d. In addition to any fines imposed by the Court, the Court is specifically authorized to 

order abatement and restitution, as well as community service, not to exceed 48 hours.  

Section 4. Inspection and Citation 

a.  The following are listed “Enforcement Officers” and are hereby specifically authorized 

by law to make such investigations and inspections as are necessary to enforce the 

provisions of this Ordinance, and to issue violation citations to individuals or entities to 

appear in the Rainier Municipal Court:  

 

1. Any City Police Officer, Public Works Superintendent, City Administrator, the Fire 

Chief of Columbia River Fire and Rescue and his or her agents, employees or 

designees authorized to perform the duties of this Ordinance, and such other 

employees of the City of Rainier as are specifically identified in an Order or 

Resolution of the City Council.  

b. When it may be necessary to inspect any premises to enforce the provisions of this Code, 

any Enforcement Officer having reasonable cause to believe that there exists, upon a 

premises, a condition which is contrary to or in violation of this Ordinance, the 

Enforcement Officer, in accordance with administrative policy, may enter at reasonable 

times to inspect or to perform the duties imposed by this Ordinance, provided that if such 

premises be occupied that credentials be presented to the occupant and entry requested. If 

such premises be unoccupied, the Enforcement Officer shall first make a reasonable 

effort to locate the owner or other person having charge or control of the premises and 

request entry. If entry is refused, the Enforcement Officer shall have recourse to the 

remedies provided by law to secure entry, including specifically an administrative search 

warrant from the Municipal Court.  

Section 5. Other Laws. Nothing in this Ordinance authorizes or commands or shall be 

interpreted as authorizing or commanding the performance of an activity which is in violation of 

any county, state or federal law or regulation or of any law or regulations of the Columbia River 

Fire and Rescue District.  

 

This ordinance repeals Ordinance 959 and Section 15.10 of the Rainier Municipal Code. It is 

effective 30 days upon passage. 

 

SIGNED and APPROVED this ____ day of __________, 2025. 

 

                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator  

 























ORDINANCE NO. 1103 

 

AN ORDINANCE PERMITTING AND REGULATING THE USE OF UTILITY TASK 

VEHICLES (UTVs) AND GOLF CARTS ON CITY STREETS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier recognizes the need for alternative, fuel-efficient, and low-

speed vehicles for transportation within city limits;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Rainier ordains as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1 “Utility Task Vehicle (UTV)” – A side-by-side motorized vehicle with off-road capabilities, 

designed for two or more occupants, equipped with a steering wheel, seat belts, roll cage, and 

cargo area. 

 

1.2 “Golf Cart” – A small motor vehicle originally designed for use on a golf course, with a top 

speed not exceeding 20 miles per hour. 

 

1.3 “City Streets” – Public roads and rights-of-way within the Rainier city limits, not including 

state highways or private roads unless specifically designated. 

 

 

SECTION 2: PERMITTED USE 

 

2.1 UTVs and golf carts are permitted on Rainier city streets with a posted speed limit of 35 mph 

or lower. 

 

2.2 Crossing higher-speed roads (such as U.S. Highway 30) is only allowed at controlled 

intersections with marked crossings. 

 

2.3 These vehicles are not permitted on sidewalks, the pedestrian trail system, or in city parks 

unless specifically designated by signage. 

 

 

SECTION 3: REQUIRED SAFETY EQUIPMENT 

 

All UTVs and golf carts operating on city streets must include: 

 

• Functioning headlights, taillights, and brake lights 

• Turn signals or the ability to use hand signals 

• At least one rearview mirror 

• A functioning horn 

• A slow-moving vehicle emblem or reflective triangle on the rear 

• Seat belts for all occupants (UTVs only) 



• Rollover protection system (ROPS) for UTVs 

 

SECTION 4: OPERATOR REQUIREMENTS 

 

4.1 Operators must: 

 

• Be at least 16 years old 

• Possess a valid Oregon driver’s license 

• Carry proof of liability insurance for the vehicle 

 

4.2 No person shall operate a UTV or golf cart while under the influence of alcohol or controlled 

substances. 

 

4.3 Passengers must remain seated at all times while the vehicle is in motion. 

 

 

SECTION 5: CITY REGISTRATION & PERMITTING 

 

5.1 All vehicles must be registered with the City of Rainier and display a city-issued permit decal 

on the rear of the vehicle. 

 

5.2 The permit application must include: 

 

• Completed application form 

• Proof of insurance 

• Copy of valid driver’s license 

• Payment of a $25 annual fee 

• Safety inspection certification from Rainier Police Department or a designated inspection 

office 

 

SECTION 6: PROHIBITED AREAS 

 

• U.S. Highway 30 except at legal crossings 

• A Street and East 5th Street where posted over 35 mph 

• All sidewalks, school grounds, and public trails 

 

Rainier Public Works will post signage in prohibited zones. 

 

SECTION 7: ENFORCEMENT & PENALTIES 

 

7.1 Violations are punishable by: 

 

• First offense: Warning or fine up to $100 

• Second offense: Fine up to $250 and possible permit suspension 

• Third offense: Revocation of permit for 12 months 

 



 

7.2 Rainier Police Department shall be responsible for enforcement. 

 

SECTION 8: SEVERABILITY 

 

If any part of this ordinance is declared invalid, the remaining portions shall remain in effect. 

 

 

SECTION 9: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 

This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption by the Rainier City Council. 

 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of Rainier, Oregon, this ____ day of 

__________, 2025. 

 

                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator  

 





BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF  

THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 

RESOLUTION #25-09-01 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR CERTAIN POLICE 

DEPARTMENT SERVICES  

 

WHEREAS, The City strives to provide services in the most cost-effective manner 

possible; and  

 

WHEREAS, The City incurs costs for providing some of those services; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is in The City’s best interests to recover those costs whenever possible;  

 

 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Rainier City Council has 

adopted the following fee schedule for police department services, effective immediately 

upon passage: 

 

Description     Fee 

Documents/Reports   $25, plus $0.10 per page over 10 pages 

 

Body Camera Footage $115 first 10 minutes; $95 for each additional 10 

minutes of footage 

 

Staff Research Fee $80 per hour; no charge for the first 30 minutes 

     

Payment Plan Setup Fee  $25 for 1-6 months; $50 for 6-12 months 

 

Police Officer Training Fee  $50 for traffic citations, unless dismissed 

 

Court Cancellation Fee  $150 

 

Impound Release   $50 

 

Fingerprint Card   $20 

 

Photos     $20 

 

Passed and Approved this 15th day of September, 2025. 

 

 

_______________________ 

Jerry Cole, Mayor  

 



 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

________________________ 

W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

 



 

. 

  

CITY OF RAINIER LEAK ADJUSTMENT REQUEST FORM 

 

The City of Rainier has a practice of issuing partial utility bill credits for water leaks that are repaired in a 

timely manner. The City expects leaks to be repaired within 14 days of discovery. An adjustment is 

calculated based on the excess consumption and the credit amount is then applied to the account, 

providing that no adjustment will be made for water lost more than seven days beyond notification of a 

possible leak.  

 

A leak adjustment may be granted if the leak occurred on the customer’s side of the meter and proof is 

provided to City staff to confirm that the leak was repaired. If a leak continues for two or more billing 

cycles, there will be no adjustment for the second or subsequent cycle. The minimum leak adjustment is 

$20. Any adjustment will exclude the City’s costs of providing the water service, as determined by the 

Public Works Director.  

 

No adjustment may be given on delinquent accounts or if a previous credit was given at the same address 

within the last six months. Any customer who disagrees with the adjustments may contact the City 

Administrator to appeal the decision before the City Council.  

 

Date:_______________   Account Number:_______________________________ 

 

Name on the Account:____________________________________________________________ 

 

Mailing Address:________________________________________________________________ 

 

Service Address:________________________________________________________________ 

 

Daytime phone:___________________        Evening phone:_____________________________ 

 

Date the leak was detected:________________________________________________________ 

 

Date the leak was repaired:________________________________________________________ 

 

Location of water leak:___________________________________________________________ 

 

Repaired by whom:______________________________________________________________ 

 

Description of repairs:____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 



 

. 

  

 

I acknowledge that the information given above is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I have 

read and understand the City’s practices regarding credit for leak adjustment. I understand that I am not 

eligible for another leak credit until 6 months from the granting of this credit. 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature                       Date  

 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

Owner signature if rental        Date 

 

 

 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

 

Inspected By:_____________________________________ 

    City Official 

 

        Approved 

 

        Denied: Reason ____________________________________________________________ 

 

Total Credit: $_________ 

 

Issued By:________________________ Date Applied:______________________ 

 

 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF  

THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 

RESOLUTION #25-09-02 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING CRITERIA TO ADJUST EXCESSIVE 

WATER BILLS DUE TO LEAKS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier provides water service to residential and commercial 

customers; and 

 

WHEREAS, water leaks can cause substantial billing increases to those customers, 

creating potential hardship; and 

 

WHEREAS, a policy is needed to ensure that residential and commercial customers who 

experience water leaks are treated fairly and equitably;  

 

 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Rainier City Council 

adopts the following leak adjustment request form and the policies contained therein,  

effective immediately upon passage of this resolution.  

 

 

Passed and Approved this 15th day of September, 2025. 

 

 

_______________________ 

Jerry Cole, Mayor  

 

 

ATTESTED: 

 

 

________________________ 

W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

 

 











































































City Administrator Report 

September 8, 2025 Rainier Council Meeting 

 

Mayor Cole and Members of the Council, 

 

On July 29, I met with officials from PCC-OMIC and a welding student about having metal art 

sculptures for the A Street Plaza area. The following day, I met with the general manager of the 

Sternwheeler to finalize details for that ship’s visit here September 1.  

 

I met with officials from the Columbia County Planning Department on July 31 to go over details of 

a potential urban growth boundary land swap towards the Lindberg area. On August 6, I had a similar 

meeting with the City’s Department of Land Conservation and Development regional representative.  

 

Along with Public Works Director Russ Reigel, I met with staff from the Department of 

Environmental Quality August 5 and 12 regarding the steps necessary to quality for State Revolving 

Fund Loans for possible future wastewater plant upgrades.  

 

On August 8, I helped set up the public address system for the Rainier Oregon Historical Museum’s 

grand opening ceremony.  

 

I attended the August 12 library board meeting and the August 14 meetings of Col-Pac, the 

Northwest Area Commission on Transportation and the Rainier Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Along with Public Works Director Russ Reigel and Mayor Cole, I attended the August 18 

community meeting with skateboard enthusiasts about potential improvements to the City’s skate 

park facilities. That same day, I submitted the materials to Columbia County Clerk Donald Clack for 

a gas tax ballot measure for the November election and did a test run with KLTV for Zoom 

streaming during council meetings.  

 

On August 19, I submitted a Housing Planning Assistance grant application to the Department of 

Land Conservation and Development for consulting services for a potential Urban Growth Boundary 

land swap for the Lindberg area.  

 

I attended the August 28 meeting of the Cowlitz-Wahkiakum Board of Directors. 

 

Lastly, on September 5, I submitted the direct legislative award project information form for the 

City’s $500,000 westside sewer and storm line rehabilitation project.  

 

 

At Your Service, 

 

W. Scott Jorgensen, Executive MPA 

City Administrator 

 


	5 CC 08042025 minutes
	5 Aug Check Detail Report
	6c Ordinance 1102
	6c Ordinance 959
	6d Ordinance 1103
	6e Ordinance 1054
	6e Resolution 25-09-01
	6f Leak Adjustment Request Form
	6f Resolution 25-09-02
	6g Erdman Application
	6g Kayla Hendrickson Library Board Application
	6g Sue Lowery Library Board Application
	7a Community Room
	8 City Administrator Report

